Public Document Pack

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
Meeting to be held REMOTELY on
Monday, 8th March, 2021 at 11.00 am

MEMBERSHIP
Councillors
D Blackburn Amanda Carter R Charlwood D Coupar -

Farnley and Wortley;
Calverley and Farsley;
Moortown;
Temple Newsam;

D Cohen -

Alwoodley;

S Golton -

Rothwell;

H Hayden -

Temple Newsam;

W Kidger -

Morley South;

J Lennox -

Cross Gates and Whinmoor;

J Lewis (Chair) J Pryor -

Kippax and Methley;
Headingley and Hyde Park;

A Scopes -

Beeston and Holbeck;

F Venner -

Kirkstall

Note to observers of the meeting:
To remotely observe this meeting, please click on the ‘View the Meeting Recording’ link
which will feature on the meeting’s webpage (linked below) ahead of the meeting. The
webcast will become available at the commencement of the meeting.
https://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=696&MId=10283&Ver=4

Agenda compiled by:
Governance Services
Civic Hall
LEEDS LS1 1UR
Telephone No:

Harriet Speight

0113 37 89954
Produced on Recycled Paper

1

AGENDA

Item
No
1

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No
APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION
OF DOCUMENTS
To consider any appeals in accordance with
Procedure Rule 15.2 of the Access to Information
Procedure Rules (in the event of an appeal the
press and public will be excluded).
(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 15.2, written
notice of an appeal must be received by the Head
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before
the meeting)

2

EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
1

To highlight reports or appendices which
officers have identified as containing exempt
information, and where officers consider that
the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information, for the reasons
outlined in the report.

2

To consider whether or not to accept the
officers recommendation in respect of the
above information.

3
If so, to formally pass the following
resolution:RESOLVED – That the press and public be
excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the
agenda designated as containing exempt
information on the grounds that it is likely, in
view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings,
that if members of the press and public were
present there would be disclosure to them of
exempt information, as follows:-

2

Item
No
3

Ward/Equal
Item Not
Opportunities Open

Page
No
LATE ITEMS
To identify items which have been admitted to the
agenda by the Chair for consideration
(The special circumstances shall be specified in
the minutes)

4

DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY
AND OTHER INTERESTS
To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31
of the Localism Act 2000 and paragraphs 13-18 of
the Members’ Code of Conduct. Also to declare
any other significant interests which the Member
wishes to declare in the public interest, in
accordance with paragraphs 19-20 of the
Members’ Code of Conduct.

5

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive any apologies for absence from the
meeting.

6

MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING

7-8

To receive and approve the minutes of the meeting
held on Monday 1st February 2021.
7

AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTION COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES
To consider the report of the City Solicitor that sets
out proposed amendments to Article 26 of the
Council Procedure Rules, which sets out the
arrangements for substitution to Plans Panels and
the Development Plan Panel.

3

9 - 36

Item
No
8

Ward/Equal
Item Not
Opportunities Open

Page
No
ADOPTION OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT
ASSOCIATION MODEL COUNCILLOR CODE OF
CONDUCT AND AMENDMENTS TO THE
PROCEDURE FOR CONSIDERING
COMPLAINTS ALLEGING A FAILURE TO
COMPLY WITH THE MEMBERS' CODE OF
CONDUCT
To consider the report of the City Solicitor that
presents recommendations from the Standards
and Conduct Committee in respect to the Council’s
ethical framework – specifically the adoption of a
new Code of Conduct for local councillors and
amendments to the procedure for considering code
of conduct complaints.

9

DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING
The next meeting will take place on Wednesday
12th May 2021 at 2.00 p.m.
THIRD PARTY RECORDING
Recording of this meeting is allowed to enable
those not present to see or hear the proceedings
either as they take place (or later) and to enable
the reporting of those proceedings. A copy of the
recording protocol is available from the contacts
named on the front of this agenda.
Use of Recordings by Third Parties– code of
practice
a)

b)

Any published recording should be
accompanied by a statement of when and
where the recording was made, the context
of the discussion that took place, and a
clear identification of the main speakers and
their role or title.
Those making recordings must not edit the
recording in a way that could lead to
misinterpretation or misrepresentation of the
proceedings or comments made by
attendees. In particular there should be no
internal editing of published extracts;
recordings may start at any point and end at
any point but the material between those
points must be complete.

4

37 72

Agenda Item 6
GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 1ST FEBRUARY, 2021
PRESENT:

Councillor J Blake in the Chair
Councillors D Blackburn, Amanda Carter,
R Charlwood, D Cohen, D Coupar,
S Golton, H Hayden, W Kidger, J Lewis,
J Pryor, A Scopes and F Venner

10

Appeals against refusal of inspection of documents
There were no appeals against the refusal of inspection of documents.

11

Exempt Information - possible exclusion of the press and public
There were no resolutions to exclude the public.

12

Late items
There were no late items.

13

Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary and Other Interests
There were no declarations of interest.

14

Apologies for absence
There were no apologies.

15

Minutes of the last meeting
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on the 21 October 2020
be approved as a correct record.

16

Approval of the 2021/22 Pay Policy Statement
The Chief Officer Human Resources submitted a report seeking Members’
views on the revised Pay Policy Statement and for the Committee to make
recommendations to Full Council to approve the changes before the start of
the 2021/22 financial year.
The following were in attendance:
-

Emma Wyatt, Head of Human Resources
Jessica Dolphin, Human Resources Service Manager

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Monday, 8th March, 2021

Page 5

In response to a query, it was confirmed that the reference to median pay at
7.87:1 at paragraph 3.2 of the report was incorrect and should read 7.59:1, as
set out in Appendix B. Officers advised that this would be amended ahead of
submission to Full Council.
Members noted disappointment that the report evidenced a broadening
gender pay gap to previous years. Members were advised the 2.6% increase
in the median can be attributed to the increase of women in the lower middle
and top quartiles, but the representation of males in the bottom quartile, and
upper middle quartile has also increased at the same time. Therefore,
Members were advised that this reflects a positive trend, as there are more
women represented in the higher paid quartiles than previously. However, this
increase impacts the median figure as it represents the middle salary, and so
the increase in men in the bottom quartile has pushed a lower salary group to
the middle, which has a higher representation of women.
RESOLVED – That the following be recommended to Full Council:
a) Consideration and approval of the Pay Policy Statement for the
2021/22 financial year as attached at Appendix A;
b) That any in year requirement to amend the Annual Pay Policy
Statement as a consequence of changes to Council Policies is reported
to the General Purposes Committee to consider recommending to Full
Council for approval;
c) Delegation to the Chief Officer (HR) of any necessary adjustments to
the Council’s pay scales arising from nationally agreed pay awards.
Councillors Dan Cohen and Amanda Carter wished for it to be noted that they
abstained from voting on the decisions as referred to in this minute.
17

Date and time of next meeting
The next meeting will take place 8th March 2021 at 11.00 a.m.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Monday, 8th March, 2021

Page 6

Agenda Item 7
Report author: Nicole Walker
Tel: 0113 37 89025

Report of City Solicitor
Report to General Purposes Committee
Date: 8th March 2021
Subject: Amendments to the Constitution – Council Procedure Rules
Yes

No

Has consultation been carried out?

Yes

No

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and
integration?

Yes

No

Will the decision be open for call-in?

Yes

No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

Yes

No

Are specific electoral wards affected?
If yes, name(s) of ward(s):

If relevant, access to information procedure rule number:
Appendix number:

Summary
1. Main issues


This report sets out amendments to the Constitution, required to provide
consistency in relation to the arrangements for substitution for plans panels.

2. Best Council Plan Implications (see the latest version of the Best Council Plan)


The Constitution must be maintained up to date and fit for purpose in line with the
Council’s Corporate Governance Code and Framework in addition to furthering the
Council’s value of being “open, honest and trusted.”

3. Resource Implications


There are no implications for this report.

Recommendations
The General Purposes Committee is requested to recommend to Full Council
amendments to the Council Procedure Rules as shown at Appendix A attached.

Page 7

1.

Purpose of this report

1.1

This report sets out proposed amendments to the Constitution.

2. Main issues
Council procedure Rules
2.1

Article 26 of The Council Procedure Rules set out the arrangements for substitution
to Plans Panels and the Development Plan Panel.

2.2

There is inconsistency of substitution arrangements across each panel and it is
recommended that the provisions are brought together in one rule to ensure
consistency and provide clarity in the arrangements.

2.3

Proposed amendments are set out at Appendix A attached.

3.

Corporate considerations

3.1

Consultation and engagement

3.1.1 Consultation with Group leaders, Whips and the Leader Councillor James Lewis
has been undertaken, their comments have formulated the proposed amendments
set out at Appendix A.
3.2

Equality and diversity / cohesion and integration

3.2.1 There are no implications for this report.
3.3

Council policies and the Best Council Plan

3.3.1 The Constitution must be maintained up to date and fit for purpose in line with the
Council’s Corporate Governance Code and Framework in addition to furthering the
Council’s value of being “open, honest and trusted.”
Climate Emergency
3.3.2 There are no implications for this report.
3.4

Resources, procurement and value for money

3.4.1 There are no implications for this report.
3.5

Legal implications, access to information, and call-in

3.5.1 There are no implications for this report.
3.6

Risk management

3.6.1 There are no implications for this report.
4.

Conclusions

Page 8

4.1

Amendments to the Council Procedure Rules will provide consistency and clarity
and ensure that the Council’s governance and decision making arrangements are
coherent and transparent.

5.

Recommendations

5.1 The General Purposes Committee is requested to recommend to Full Council
amendments to the Council Procedure Rules as shown at Appendix A attached.
6. Background documents1
6.1

None

The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the council’s website, unless they
contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include published works.
1

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Council Procedure Rules

COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES
1.0

ANNUAL MEETING OF COUNCIL

1.1

Timing and Business
In a year when there is an ordinary election of Councillors, the annual meeting will
take place within 21 days of the retirement of the outgoing Councillors. In any other
year, the annual meeting will take place in March, April or May.
The annual meeting will:
(a)

elect a person to preside if the Lord Mayor and Vice Chair of Council are not
present;

(b)

elect the Lord Mayor;

(c)

elect a Vice Chair of Council;

(d)

pass a vote of thanks to the retiring Lord Mayor;

(e)

approve the minutes of the last meeting;

(f)

receive any declarations of interest from Members;

(g)

receive any announcements from the Lord Mayor and/or Head of Paid
Service;

(h)

elect the Leader1;

(i)

consider any recommendations made by General Purposes Committee;

(j)

establish such committees2 as are required by statute and such other
committees as it considers appropriate to deal with matters which are neither
reserved to the Council nor are executive functions (as set out in Part 3,
Section 2A of this Constitution);3

(k)

No appointments under Rule 1 shall be for a period beyond the next Annual
Meeting of the Council but they may be altered at any meeting of the Council;

(l)

agree the scheme of delegation or such part of it as the Constitution
determines it is for the Council to agree (as set out in Part 3, Section 2C of
this Constitution);

1

Only as required by Article 7. If the Council fails to elect the Leader at the relevant annual meeting, or a
vacancy in the office arises, the Leader is to be elected at a subsequent meeting.
2 Such committees may be known as boards or panels.
3 References in these Rules to any committee established under Rule 1.1(j) shall be construed as including
any other committee established by Full Council during municipal year.
Part 4(a)
Page 1 of 23
Issue 1– 2020/21
Last amended on

Page 11

Council Procedure Rules

1.2

(m)

receive the documents presented by the Leader in accordance with
Executive and Decision Making Procedure Rules;

(n)

approve a programme of ordinary meetings of the Council for the year; and

(o)

consider any business set out in the notice convening the meeting.

Selection of Councillors on Committees and Outside Bodies
At the annual meeting, the Council will:
(a)

decide which committees to establish for the municipal year;

(b)

decide the size and terms of reference for those committees;

(c)

decide the allocation of seats to political groups in accordance with the
political balance rules;

(d)

appoint to those committees and outside bodies except where appointments
to those bodies has been delegated by the Council; and

(e)

appoint the Chair of those committees.

2.0

ORDINARY MEETINGS

2.1

Council Meetings
The Council may amend the programme of ordinary meetings agreed at the annual
meeting.
All ordinary meetings shall be held at the Civic Hall, Leeds, at 1.00pm, unless full
Council decides otherwise.

2.2

Order of Business
Except as otherwise provided by Rule 2.3 or by statute, the order of business at
every meeting of the Council, (other than the Annual meeting, any Extraordinary
Meeting or the Budget Meeting4, or a State of the City meeting5 where the business
to be transacted at the meeting will be specified in the Summons), shall be to:
(a)

choose a person to preside if the Lord Mayor and Vice Chair of Council are
absent;

4

Business over and above the budget is usually admitted by agreement but there is a presumption that such
agreement will not include the attendance of deputations or question time.
5 Or such other similarly styled meeting
Part 4(a)
Page 2 of 23
Issue 1– 2020/21
Last amended on

Page 12

Council Procedure Rules

2.3

(b)

approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the last meeting of the
Council except where the meeting is a meeting called under paragraph 3
(extraordinary meetings) of Schedule 12 to the Local Government Act 1972,
in which case the next following meeting of the Council (being a meeting
called other than under that paragraph) shall be treated as a suitable meeting
for the purposes of paragraph 41(1) and (2) (signing of minutes) of that
Schedule;

(c)

receive any declarations of interest from Members;

(d)

receive such communications as the Lord Mayor, the Leader, Deputy Leader,
or Members of the Executive Board, or the Chief Executive consider to be
appropriate;

(e)

receive deputations (if any) in accordance with Rule 10;

(f)

consider any recommendation of the Executive Board, and committees,
established under Rule 1.1(j)6, and any sub-committees thereof;

(g)

receive such reports as the Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer or Section
151 Officer consider appropriate7;

(h)

deal with Executive questions (if any) in accordance with Rule 11;

(i)

receive the minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board and Executive
Board;

(j)

consider White Paper Motions (if any) submitted in accordance with Rule 12.

Variation of Order of Business
Business falling under items Rule 2.2 (a) or (b) shall not be displaced, but subject
thereto the foregoing order of business may be varied by a resolution passed on a
motion (which need not be in writing) duly moved and seconded, which shall be
moved and put without discussion.

3.0

TIME LIMITS FOR BUSINESS

3.1

Each deputation shall be for no more than 5 minutes

3.2

A period of 30 minutes will be allowed for Executive Questions.

3.3

Subject to Rule 4.1 consideration of all business to dispose of the motion to receive
Health and Wellbeing Board and Executive Board minutes shall not continue
beyond 4.20 pm.

6

Annual reports will be received from the following committees: Scrutiny (jointly); Community Committees
(jointly); Plans Panels (jointly); Licensing Committee; Standards Committee.
7 In the case of a report relating to devolved matters, consideration of this report will take place after the tea
break time; be time limited to 30 minutes; and will enable all groups the to contribute to the debate.
Part 4(a)
Page 3 of 23
Issue 1– 2020/21
Last amended on

Page 13

Council Procedure Rules

The motion to receive the minutes shall be conducted as follows;



Consideration of Health and Wellbeing Board will be for a period of twenty
minutes including up to 4 minutes for the Chair of that Board to sum up at the
conclusion of which comments on Executive Board minutes will be heard.
The Leader of Council will sum up for a period of up to ten minutes .

3.4

Each White Paper Motion shall be limited to forty five minutes, at the conclusion of
which voting shall commence.

4.0

WINDING UP OF BUSINESS

4.1

At the conclusion of the speech being delivered at the expiry of a specified time
period, the Lord Mayor shall put to the vote, without further discussion, all that is
necessary to dispose of the matter under debate8 provided that:


Executive Questions
Where a question has been commenced orally (but has not been completed within
the time allotted for question time) that question is completed including any
supplementary to that question and the response thereto.



Consideration of Minutes
If the relevant portfolio holder has not commenced summing up in accordance with
rule 14.1 g) they shall have the opportunity to sum up (for a period of not more than
5 minutes)9
The Leader of Council has had the opportunity to sum up (for a period of not more
than 10 minutes).



White Paper Motions/ Amendments
The Mover of the motion has had the opportunity to sum up (for a period of not
more than 4 minutes).



Reference Back
The relevant Executive Board Member or Chair has had the opportunity to sum up
(for a period of not more than 3 minutes) on the reference back.

For clarification, “all that is necessary properly to dispose of the matter under debate” means, as relevant,
for the original motion properly to be moved and seconded; for any and all amendment(s) properly to be
moved and seconded; and for the mover of the original motion to have an opportunity to exercise their right
of reply/right to sum up.
9 The Leader’s summing up may continue after 4:20 pm if necessary to accommodate the executive
Member’s summing up in relation to their portfolio.
8

Part 4(a)
Page 4 of 23
Issue 1– 2020/21
Last amended on

Page 14

Council Procedure Rules
5.0

EXTRAORDINARY MEETINGS
Those listed below may request the Proper Officer to call Council Meetings in
addition to ordinary meetings:
(a)

the Council by resolution;

(b)

the Lord Mayor;

(c)

the Chief Executive, the Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer; and

(d)

any five Members of the Council if they have signed a requisition presented
to the Lord Mayor and s/he has refused to call a meeting or has failed to call
a meeting within seven clear days10 of the presentation of the requisition.

6.0

NOTICE OF AND SUMMONS TO MEETINGS

6.1

The Chief Executive will give notice to the public of the time and place of any
meeting in accordance with the Access to Information Procedure Rules. At least
five clear days before a meeting, the Chief Executive will send a summons signed
by him/her to every Member of the Council or leave it at their usual place of
residence. The summons will give the date, time and place of each meeting and
specify the business to be transacted, and will be accompanied by such reports as
are available.

6.2

The notices for all meetings of committees established under Rule 1.1(j) shall be
issued from the office of the Chief Executive and no matter shall be considered at
such meeting without the prior agreement of the Chief Executive who shall first have
been furnished with any written report or with details of any intended verbal report.

7.0

POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE LORD MAYOR

7.1

Any power or duty of the Lord Mayor in relation to the conduct of a meeting may be
exercised by the Vice Chair, or in the absence of the Vice Chair, the person elected
to preside at the meeting.

7.2

Any duty of the Chief Executive in relation to the conduct of a meeting may be
exercised in the Chief Executive's absence by the City Solicitor.

8.0

QUORUM

8.1

The quorum of a meeting will be one quarter of the whole number of Members11.

8.2

If during any meeting of the Council, any Member draws to the attention of the Lord
Mayor that there does not appear to be a quorum present, the Lord Mayor shall

10

Not including the date the requisition was received and not including weekends or bank holidays
Which shall be 25 Members unless more than one third of the Members are disqualified at the same time,
when until the number of Members in office is increased to not less than two thirds of the whole, the quorum
shall be determined by reference to the number of Members remaining qualified
11

Part 4(a)
Page 5 of 23
Issue 1– 2020/21
Last amended on

Page 15

Council Procedure Rules
direct the Chief Executive to call over the names of the Members of the Council. If
there is less than a quarter present, the Lord Mayor shall declare the meeting
adjourned. The names of the Members present and those absent shall be recorded
in the minutes of the Council.
8.3

The consideration of any business not transacted shall be adjourned to a time fixed
by the Lord Mayor at the time the meeting is adjourned or, if the Lord Mayor does
not fix a time, to the next ordinary meeting of the Council.

9.0

COMMUNICATIONS

9.1

There shall be no discussion on any matter referred to in communications from the
Lord Mayor, the Chief Executive or Executive Members as are thought necessary to
be read, but any Member shall be at liberty to move a motion, without notice, to
refer any of such communications to the appropriate committee and such motion,
on being seconded, shall be at once put to the vote.

10.0

DEPUTATIONS

10.1

The Council will not receive more than four deputations at any ordinary meeting.12

10.2

A request for permission to bring a Deputation must be submitted, to the Head of
Democratic Services, at least fourteen clear days in advance of the Council meeting
for which permission is sought.

10.3

A copy of the proposed deputation speech must accompany the permission
request.

10.4 Deputations shall be relevant to some matter in relation to which the Council has
powers or duties or which affects the City of Leeds.
10.5

Deputation requests which relate solely to the interests of an individual or company,
or which present, or may appear to present unsubstantiated allegations or claims in
respect of an individual, group of individuals, a company or any other body, or are in
any way vexatious or otherwise significantly prejudicial to the interests of the
Council or the City of Leeds, will not be permitted.

10.6

Requests concerning matters being considered by a Plans Panel, the Licensing
Committee (or a sub-committee) will not be received.

10.7

The suitability of a Deputation shall be determined by the Chief Executive.
Permission to attend Council and present a Deputation shall be issued by the Chief
Executive.

10.8 Eligible deputations shall be heard in the order in which permission is granted.

12

Except the Annual Meeting, an Extraordinary Meeting, the Budget Meeting and a State of the City (or other
similarly styled) meeting where deputations shall not be heard.
Part 4(a)
Page 6 of 23
Issue 1– 2020/21
Last amended on

Page 16

Council Procedure Rules
10.9 A deputation shall consist of at least two and no more than five people. One person
from a deputation may address the Council, for no longer than five minutes13.
10.10 Where two or more deputations present opposing views on the same matter, the
Council will not receive more than one of these related deputations at the same
meeting.
10.11 The Council shall not normally receive a deputation on a matter that has been the
subject of a deputation in the previous six months, except as a result of a refusal at
10.10.
10.12 The Council shall not debate any matter raised by a deputation when it is
presented.
10.13 Any Member of the Council may move a motion without notice, that the deputation
be or not be received, or that the subject matter be referred to the appropriate
committee14. The Lord Mayor will put such a motion on being seconded, to the vote
without debate.
11.0

EXECUTIVE QUESTIONS

11.1

Questions on Notice

11.2

(a)

Executive Questions may be put at each ordinary meeting of the Council
(except, the Budget Meeting or a State of the City meeting15).

(b)

During question time, a Member may ask the Leader of the Council, the
Deputy Leader, any Executive Member16 or the Chair of any executive
committee17 through the Lord Mayor, any question on any matter in relation
to which the Council has powers or duties, or which affects the City of
Leeds18.

(c)

A question shall not be asked in the absence of the Member in whose name
it stands unless they have given authority for it to be asked by some other
Member of the Council.

Notice of Questions
Notice in writing of the question must be given to the Chief Executive before
10.00am on the Monday preceding the Council meeting. Questions from an

13

Including the reading of any written material
Or to the officer with appropriate delegated authority who shall consider the matter in consultation with the
relevant Executive Member.
15 or other such styled meeting. Questions cannot be put at the Annual Meeting or any Extraordinary
Meeting.
16 In relation to any matter within their portfolio.
17 In relation to any matter within the committee’s terms of reference.
18 A Member may also ask a Member of the Council appointed by full Council to another body, any question
about functions discharged by that other body. Any question about any function discharged by the West
Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority must be directed to a Member nominated by that Authority..
14

Part 4(a)
Page 7 of 23
Issue 1– 2020/21
Last amended on

Page 17

Council Procedure Rules
individual or group will be taken in the order in which notice of the question is
received from that individual or group.
11.3

11.4

Response
(a)

Every question shall be put and answered without discussion but the person
to whom a question has been put may decline to answer.

(b)

A Member to whom a question is addressed19 shall have discretion to
nominate a Member to answer such question where the Member considers
that the answer would most appropriately be given by such nominee.

Form of Response
An answer may take the form of:

11.5

(a)

a direct oral answer, or where the desired information is contained in a
publication of the Council or of the relevant Joint Authority or Joint
Committee, a reference to that publication; or

(b)

where the reply to the question cannot conveniently be given orally, a written
answer circulated to Members of the Council. Written answers wherever
possible should be sent out by the Chief Executive within 10 working days.

Supplementary Question
The Member who asked a question during question time may ask one
supplementary question, arising directly out of the original question.

11.6

Unanswered Questions
Where the answer has not been commenced during question time, it shall be
answered by written answer circulated to Members of the Council. If the answer to
a question has been commenced orally but has not been completed within question
time it may be completed orally including any supplementary to that question and
the response thereto.

12.0

MOTIONS ON NOTICE

12.1

Notice
Except for motions which can be moved without notice under Rule 13, written
notice of every motion signed by the Member or Members of Council giving notice
must be delivered at the office of the Chief Executive prior to 10.00am of the day
preceding the day for issue of the Summons. The proposer of a Motion shall have

Except in relation to functions discharged by the West Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority – see footnote
15 above.
19

Part 4(a)
Page 8 of 23
Issue 1– 2020/21
Last amended on

Page 18

Council Procedure Rules
the right to correct or withdraw a Motion up to 10.00 am on the day the Summons
is to be issued.
12.2

White Paper Motions
The number of White Paper motions admissible for full debate at any given meeting
shall be limited to three20 21.

12.3

12.4

Scope
(a)

Every motion shall be relevant to some matter in relation to which the
Council has powers or duties or which affects the City of Leeds.

(b)

All the notices of motion received by the Chief Executive shall be submitted
to the Lord Mayor. If the Lord Mayor considers that any such motion relates
to matters other than of a local nature or is similar to a matter which in the
past six months has been rejected at a meeting of the Council, the Member
concerned shall ask leave of the Council to introduce such a motion before
proceeding to address Council on it. Once the motion is dealt with, no-one
can propose a similar motion for six months.

(c)

There shall be no speech or discussion upon asking for such leave to so
introduce a motion. The fact that any such motion requires the leave of the
Council shall be indicated in the Council Summons.

(d)

If it appears to the Lord Mayor that any motion requiring notice relates only in
part to the matters stated in (b) above, the Lord Mayor may invite the
Member of the Council concerned to amend the motion in agreement with the
Lord Mayor either by omitting the part relating to such matters or by dividing
the motion so that the part relating to such matters is stated in terms of a
separate motion, but without addition to the terms of the original motion. In
such event the original motion shall appear on the Council Summons with the
indication that it requires the leave of the Council, but it shall be competent
for the Member concerned to move without leave the part agreed by that
Member with the Lord Mayor as not relating to the matters above stated, and
after that motion has been disposed of, if the Member so wishes, to move
with leave of Council the remaining part of the motion.

Motion Set Out in Agenda
(a)

The Chief Executive shall set out in the Summons for every meeting of the
Council all motions of which notice has been duly given, and notice of all
business which in the judgement of the Chief Executive requires to be
brought before the Council.

20One

to the Labour Group, one to the Conservative Group, one to be shared on a rota agreed by the other
political groups.
21 Where submitted, the first White Paper considered will be that submitted by the Conservative Group
Part 4(a)
Page 9 of 23
Issue 1– 2020/21
Last amended on

Page 19

Council Procedure Rules
(b)

The business under any notice upon the Council Summons shall not be
proceeded with in the absence of the Member or Members of the Council in
whose name or names it stands, unless they have given authority in writing
for it to be taken up by some other Member or Members of the Council, or it
is business which, by law, the Council must transact or business emanating
from a committee the notice whereof stands in the name of the Chair of that
committee in which latter case the resolution may be moved, without
authority in writing, by some other Member of the committee.

13.0

MOTIONS/AMENDMENTS

13.1

Motions and amendments requiring notice
a)

Except as set out in Rule 13.2 below, and as provided in Rule 14.8, no
amendment to a motion (including an amendment to refer back any business
for further consideration) shall be moved at any meeting of the Council
unless notice thereof in writing setting out the amendment and signed by the
Member or Members giving it, has been received by the Chief Executive:



13.2

no later than 10.00am on the working day before the commencement of
the meeting; or
no later than 10.00 am on the third working day after the issue of the
Summons if the amendment is to the Budget Motion.

Motions without notice
The following motions and amendments may be moved without notice:
(a)

appointment of a Chair of the meeting at which the motion is made;

(b)

in relation to the accuracy of a report, minutes or recommendation before
Council;

(c)

to change the order of business in the agenda;

(d)

that leave be given to withdraw an item of business including a motion or
amendment;

(e)

that the Council proceed to the next business;

(f)

that the question be now put;

(g)

that the debate be adjourned;

(h)

that the meeting be adjourned

(i)

authorising the sealing of documents;

(j)

suspending Council Procedure Rules, in accordance with Rule 22.1;
Part 4(a)
Page 10 of 23
Issue 1– 2020/21
Last amended on

Page 20

Council Procedure Rules
(k)

motion to exclude the press and public in accordance with the Access to
Information Rules;

(l)

that a Member named under Rule 20, be not further heard or leave the
meeting;

(m)

giving consent of the Council where its consent is required by this
Constitution; and

(n)

that a communication be referred to the appropriate Committee

14.0

RULES OF DEBATE

14.1

Period Permitted for Speeches
Except by the leave of Council (and as follows);
a. A Member may address Council under the Communications item for up to
3 minutes.
b. A Member moving a White Paper motion may speak for up to 5 minutes.
c. A Member seconding a White Paper motion may speak for up to 4
minutes22,
d. A Member may speak for up to 4 minutes when contributing to, or
summing up on, White Paper debates.
e. A Member moving any other motion may speak for up to 4 minutes.
f. A Member moving any amendment may speak for up to 4 minutes.
g. An Executive Board Member or other such Member as may be
determined appropriate, may speak for up to 6 minutes23 when summing
up on comments made on Minutes.
h. An Executive Board Member responsible for the section of the minutes to
which an amendment (reference back) relates shall have 3 minutes to
comment as the last speaker in the debate on the amendment (reference
back).
i.

The Leader of Council may speak for up to ten minutes when summing
up on the Minutes.

j.

A Member contributing to, or summing up on, any business other than set
out above, may speak for up to 3 minutes.

22

A Member when seconding a White Paper motion, or an amendment to a White Paper Motion, may
reserve that speech until a later period of the debate.
23 Where the Executive Board Member is the Leader of Council the time available for summing up on his/her
portfolio shall be 5 minutes.
Part 4(a)
Page 11 of 23
Issue 1– 2020/21
Last amended on

Page 21

Council Procedure Rules
k. On resuming an adjourned debate, the Member who moved its
adjournment is entitled to speak first for up to 3 minutes.
14.2

No Speeches Until Motion Seconded
All other motions or amendments shall not be discussed unless it has been
proposed and seconded.

14.3

Right to require motion in writing
Unless notice has already been given in accordance with Rules 12.1 or 13 it shall
be put into writing and handed to the Lord Mayor before it is further discussed or put
to the meeting.

14.4

Content of Speeches
Members shall direct their speech to the question under discussion, a personal
explanation or a point of order.

14.5

When a Member May Speak Again
A Member who has spoken on any motion shall not speak again whilst it is the
subject of debate except:
(i)

if the motion has been amended since the Member last spoke, to move a
further amendment

(ii)

in exercise of a right of reply

(iii)

to raise a point of order in accordance with Rule 14.15

(iv)

to make a personal explanation in accordance with Rule 14.16

For the purpose of this Rule only, comments on the minutes in each portfolio
section of the Executive Board and each committee moved under Rule 2.2(i) shall
be regarded as being comments upon separate motions and such comments shall
be relevant to such section of the minutes as are under debate.
14.6

Amendments to Motions
(a)

An amendment must be relevant to the motion and will be to:(i)

refer a subject of debate to an appropriate body or individual for
consideration or reconsideration;

(ii)

leave out words;

(iii)

leave out words and insert or add others; or

(iv)

insert or add words,
Part 4(a)
Page 12 of 23
Issue 1– 2020/21
Last amended on

Page 22

Council Procedure Rules

provided that such omission, insertion or addition of words shall not have the
effect solely of negating the motion.

14.7

14.8

(b)

Subject to Rule 14.6(c), only one amendment may be moved and discussed
at any time. No further amendment shall be moved until the amendment
under discussion has been disposed of.

(c)

Amendments to White Paper motions shall be moved and discussed in the
order in which notice thereof has been given and the voting thereon shall be
taken after the winding-up speech of the mover of the original motion.

Amendments (Reference Back) to a Motion to receive the Minutes
(a)

Only one amendment may be moved to any given minute under a motion to
receive the minutes. This shall be one to request the decision-maker to
reconsider the decision.

(b)

The Executive Member or Chair responsible for the section of the minutes to
which the amendment relates shall have 3 minutes to comment as the last
speaker in the debate on the amendment in addition to his/her rights under
Rule 14.1(g). In the event that the amendment is the sole matter discussed
under the given section of the minutes then the six minutes allowed under
Rule 14.1(g) shall be applied.

(c)

The vote will be taken on the amendment before proceeding to comments on
that section of the minutes.

Further Amendments
(a)

If any amendment is lost, other amendments may be moved on the original
motion provided that, where necessary, due notice has been given in
accordance with Rule 13.1.

(b)

If an amendment is carried, the motion as amended takes the place of the
original motion upon which any further such amendments may be moved but
this does not prevent any further amendments being moved by references to
the wording of the original motion.

(c)

If a Member wishes to move a second or further amendment and has not
given due notice thereof where required in accordance with Rule 13.1 the
Member shall give notice of the proposed amendment during the discussion
on the first or other earlier amendment and, subject to the consent of the
Lord Mayor (which question shall not be open to discussion), may move this
amendment at such time as the Lord Mayor shall decide. Subject to this, all
amendments shall be considered in the order in which notice has been
given.

Part 4(a)
Page 13 of 23
Issue 1– 2020/21
Last amended on

Page 23

Council Procedure Rules
14.9

Alteration of Motion
A Member may with the consent of the Council signified without discussion:
(a)

alter a motion of which that Member has given notice; or

(b)

with the further consent of the seconder, alter a motion which that Member
has moved

if (in either case) the alteration is one which could be made as an amendment
thereto.
14.10 Withdrawal of Motion or Minutes
A motion or amendment shall not be withdrawn except with the consent of the
seconder and of the Council. There shall be no discussion upon an application to
withdraw a motion or amendment but any Member shall be at liberty to move that
the leave applied for be given and the Council without discussion shall vote thereon.
14.11 Right of Reply
(a)

The mover of a motion has a right to reply at the close of debate of the
motion immediately before it is put to the vote.

(b)

If an amendment is moved, the mover of the original motion shall also have a
right of reply at the close of the debate on the amendment but may not
otherwise speak on the amendment.
The mover of the amendment has no right of reply to the debate on such
amendment.

(c)

14.12 Motions that May Be Moved During Debate
When a motion is under debate no motion shall be moved except the following:(a)

to amend the motion;

(b)

to adjourn the meeting;

(c)

to adjourn the debate;

(d)

to proceed to the next business;

(e)

that the question be now put;

(f)

that a Member be not further heard;

(g)

by the Lord Mayor under Rule 20 that a Member leave a meeting;

(h)

to exclude the press and public in accordance with the Access to Information
Procedure Rules; or
Part 4(a)
Page 14 of 23
Issue 1– 2020/21
Last amended on

Page 24

Council Procedure Rules

(i)

to give consent to the withdrawal of a motion or amendment.

14.13 Closure Motions
(a)

A Member may move, without comment, at the conclusion of a speech of
another Member,
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

to proceed to the next business;
that the question be now put;
to adjourn a debate; or
to adjourn a meeting

on the seconding of which the Lord Mayor shall proceed as set out in
paragraphs (b), (c) and (d) below.
(b)

If a motion to proceed to the next business is seconded, the Lord Mayor will
first give the mover of the original motion a right of reply in accordance with
time limits for speaking set out in Procedure Rule 14.1. The Lord Mayor will
then put to the vote the motion to proceed to the next business.

(c)

If a motion that the question be now put is seconded, the Lord Mayor will first
put to the vote the motion that the question be now put, and if it is passed
then give the mover of the original motion a right of reply in accordance with
time limits for speaking set out in Procedure Rule 14.1 before putting a
motion to the vote.

(d)

If a motion to adjourn the debate or the meeting is seconded, the Lord Mayor
shall put the adjournment motion to the vote without giving the mover of the
original motion a right of reply on that occasion and no amendment to the
motion shall be permitted unless it relates to the time of adjournment.

14.14 Resumption of Adjourned Debate
On resuming an adjourned debate, the Member who moved its adjournment is
entitled to speak first.

14.15 Points of Order
A Member may raise a point of order at any time and will, with the consent of the
Lord Mayor, be entitled to be heard immediately. A point of order may relate only to
an alleged breach of these Council Procedure Rules or statutory provision. The
Member must specify the Rule or statutory provision and the way in which s/he
considers it has been broken. The Lord Mayor’s ruling is final.

Part 4(a)
Page 15 of 23
Issue 1– 2020/21
Last amended on

Page 25

Council Procedure Rules
14.16 Personal explanation
A Member may make a personal explanation at any time. A personal explanation
may only relate to some material part of an earlier speech by the Member which
may appear to have been misunderstood in the present debate. The ruling of the
Lord Mayor on the admissibility of a personal explanation will be final.
14.17 Lord Mayor’s Ruling Final
The ruling of the Lord Mayor on a point of order or on the admissibility of a personal
explanation shall not be open to discussion.
14.18 Interpretation of Council Procedure Rules
The ruling of the Lord Mayor as to the construction or application of any of these
Rules, or as to any proceedings of the Council, shall not be challenged at any
meeting of the Council and is final.
15.0

RESCINDING RESOLUTIONS OF COUNCIL

15.1

No resolution of the Council shall be rescinded or varied, except upon motion made
on a notice which shall refer to the resolution sought to be rescinded or varied.
Provided that this Rule shall not apply to motions moved in pursuance of a
recommendation by the Executive Board or a committee established under Rule
1.1(j) or a sub-committee thereof.

16.0

VOTING

16.1

Majority
Unless this Constitution or the law provides otherwise, any matter will be decided by
a simple majority of those Members voting and present in the room at the time the
question was put.

16.2

Casting Vote
At any meeting of the Council or a committee established under Rule 1.1(j), or a
sub-committee thereof, the Chair shall, in case of an equal division of votes have a
second or casting vote.

16.3

Show of Hands
(a)

Unless a recorded vote is demanded under Rules 16.4 and 16.5, the Lord
Mayor will take the vote by show of hands or if there is no dissent, by the
affirmation of the meeting.

(b)

The result of a vote by show of hands will be announced provisionally by the
Lord Mayor who will then allow a further reasonable period for any two
Members to requisition a recorded vote. If any such requisition is made, the
Part 4(a)
Page 16 of 23
Issue 1– 2020/21
Last amended on

Page 26

Council Procedure Rules
show of hands shall be disregarded and the voting will be recorded to show
how each Member present voted.
(c)

16.4

If no such requisition is made before the Lord Mayor announces the next item
of business or the closure of the meeting, as appropriate, the result of the
show of hands as announced by the Lord Mayor will there upon become
final.

Recorded Vote
Where a recorded vote is required in accordance with paragraphs (a) or (b) below
then the minute of the proceedings shall include a record of the names of persons
who cast a vote for the decision or against the decision or who abstained from
voting.
A recorded vote is required in the following circumstances:(a)
(b)

16.5

Any vote required to be recorded by law24, or
Any vote where, before the vote is taken on any matter before Council, any
two Members of the Council demand that the votes are recorded.

Right to Require Individual Vote to be Recorded
Where immediately after a vote is taken at a meeting if any Member so requires,
there shall be recorded in the minutes of the proceedings of that meeting whether
that person cast his/her vote for the question, against the question or whether s/he
abstained from voting.

16.6

16.7

Division Bells
(a)

Where a closing speech has started there will be a single ring of the bell.

(b)

In any situation where it has been agreed that a recorded vote shall be taken,
there will be two rings of the bell and at least half a minute will elapse
between the end of the final ring and the taking of the vote.

Voting on Appointments
If there are more than two people nominated for any position to be filled by the
Council, and there is not a clear majority in favour of one person, then the name of
the person with the least number of votes shall be taken off the list and a new vote
shall be taken. The process will continue until there is a majority of votes for one
person.

24

Including but not limited to the requirement to record a vote in relation to a budget decision in accordance
with paragraph 11 of Schedule 2, Part 2 of the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations
2001.
Part 4(a)
Page 17 of 23
Issue 1– 2020/21
Last amended on

Page 27

Council Procedure Rules
17.0

MINUTES

17.1

Signing the Minutes

17.2

(a)

The Lord Mayor will put the question that the minutes of the previous
meeting or meetings of the Council be approved as a correct record.

(b)

No discussion will take place upon the minutes, except upon their accuracy,
and any question of their accuracy shall be raised by motion. If no such
question is raised, or it is raised then as soon as it has been disposed of, the
Lord Mayor will sign the minutes.

No requirement to sign minutes of previous meeting at Extraordinary Meeting
Where in relation to any meeting, the next meeting for the purpose of signing the
minutes is a meeting called under paragraph 3 of Schedule 12 to the Local
Government Act 1972 (an Extraordinary Meeting) then the next following meeting
(being a meeting called otherwise than under that paragraph) will be treated as a
suitable meeting for the purposes of paragraph 41(1) and (2) of Schedule 12
relating to signing of minutes.

17.3

Form of Minutes
Minutes will contain all motions and amendments in the exact form and order the
Lord Mayor put them.

18.0

RECORD OF ATTENDANCE

18.1

The clerk for the meeting will record the attendance of all Members present during
the whole or part of a meeting.

19.0

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC

19.1

Subject to any statutory prohibitions and to paragraph 19.2 below, meetings of the
Council and committees established under Rule 1.1(j) and any sub-committees
thereof, shall be open to the public25. This shall be without prejudice to any power
of exclusion to suppress or prevent disorderly conduct or other misbehaviour at a
meeting.

19.2

The Council and committees established under Rule 1.1(j) and any sub-committees
thereof may by resolution exclude the press and public from a meeting (whether
during the whole part or part only of the proceedings) in accordance with the Access
to Information Procedure Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution.

25

The Recording Protocol: Third Party Recording of Committees, Boards and Panels, set out at Appendix 1
to the Access to Information Procedure Rules applies.
Part 4(a)
Page 18 of 23
Issue 1– 2020/21
Last amended on

Page 28

Council Procedure Rules
20.0

MEMBERS’ CONDUCT

20.1

Standing to Speak
A Member when speaking at full Council must stand and address the Lord Mayor.
If two or more Members rise, the Lord Mayor will call on one to speak and the other
or others must sit. While the Member is speaking, the other Members must remain
seated unless rising on a point of order or personal explanation. Members shall
speak of each other by their titles of "Lord Mayor" or "Councillor" as the case may
be.

20.2

Lord Mayor Standing
When the Lord Mayor rises during a debate, any Member speaking at the time must
stop and sit down. The meeting must be silent.

20.3

Member not to be Heard Further
If at a meeting any Member indulges in misconduct by behaving irregularly,
improperly, offensively, or by wilfully obstructing the business of the Council, any
other Member (including the Lord Mayor) may move “that the Member named be
not further heard” and the motion, if seconded will, with the leave of the Lord Mayor,
be put and voted on without further discussion.

20.4

Member to Leave the Meeting
If the Member named continues the misconduct after a motion under the foregoing
paragraph has been carried, the Lord Mayor shall either move "That the Member
named do leave the meeting" (in which case the motion shall be put and determined
without seconding or discussion) or adjourn the meeting of the Council for such
period as the Lord Mayor shall consider expedient.

20.5

General Disturbance
In the event of general disturbance which in the opinion of the Lord Mayor renders
the orderly dispatch of business impossible, the Lord Mayor may, without question,
adjourn the meeting of the Council for such period as s/he considers expedient.

21.0

DISTURBANCE BY THE PUBLIC

21.1

If a Member of the public interrupts the proceedings at any meeting the Lord Mayor
will warn the person concerned. If that person continues the interruption, the Lord
Mayor will order their removal from the meeting room.

21.2

In the case of general disturbance in any part of the meeting room open to the
public the Lord Mayor may call for that part to be cleared.

Part 4(a)
Page 19 of 23
Issue 1– 2020/21
Last amended on

Page 29

Council Procedure Rules
22.0

SUSPENSION AND AMENDMENT OF COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES

22.1

Suspension
Any Council Procedure Rule except Rule 16.5 and 17.2 may be suspended by a
motion made and seconded and carried by a majority of the Members present at the
meeting. A motion to suspend in relation to the proposed introduction of an
emergency motion26 should include the wording of the motion proposed to be
considered. The motion to suspend should not include the reasons why the
suspension is being proposed. Suspension is only for the duration of the meeting.

22.2

Amendment
Any motion to add to, vary or revoke these Council Procedure Rules will, when
proposed and seconded, stand adjourned without discussion to the next ordinary
meeting of the Council.

23.0

INTEREST OF MEMBERS AND OFFICERS

23.1

Members must comply with the Members’ Code of Conduct.

23.2

Directors shall record in a book kept for the purpose particulars of any notice given
by an officer of the Council of a personal interest in a contract and each such book
shall be open during office hours to the inspection of any Members of the Council.

24.0

MOTIONS AFFECTING COUNCIL EMPLOYEES

24.1

If any question arises at a meeting of the Council or a committee established under
Rule 1.1(j) and any sub-committee thereof, open to the public as to the
appointment, promotion, dismissal, salary, superannuation or conditions of service,
or as to the conduct of any person employed by the Council, such question shall not
be the subject of discussion until the Council, committee, or sub-committee, has
decided whether or not the power of exclusion of the public under section 100A of
the Local Government Act 1972 shall be exercised.

25.0

APPLICATION TO COMMITTEES AND SUB COMMITTEES

25.1

All of the Council Procedure Rules apply to meetings of full Council. None of the
Rules apply to meetings of the Executive (see Executive and Decision Making
Procedure Rules). Only the following Rules apply to meetings of committees and
sub-committees:
6.2, 16.1, 16.2, 16.5, 16.7, 17.1(a), 18, 19, 21, 23 - 28.

25.2

References to “Lord Mayor” shall read “the Chair”.

26

And all subsequent amendments.
Part 4(a)
Page 20 of 23
Issue 1– 2020/21
Last amended on

Page 30

Council Procedure Rules
26.0

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

a.1

Allocation
(a)

In relation to each Plans Panel and Development Plan Panel, the Council
shall appoint a list of substitute members comprising all other members of the
other Plans Panels, and the Development Plan Panel and the Licensing
Committee. In addition the list may include any other Members who are not
members of these committees but are, nominated by their group Whip27, who
are not members of these committees, but have received appropriate
training. A substitute nominated member shall be entitled to attend meetings
in place of a regular member, subject to the substitute member having
received appropriate training28.

(b)

In relation to the Member Management Committee, an Executive Member,
Deputy Executive Member, Whip or Assistant Whip shall be entitled to attend
meetings in place of a regular member of the Committee.

(c)

In relation to the Development Plan Panel, the Council shall appoint
substitute Members, comprising all Members of the Plans Panels and the
Licensing Committee. A nominated Member shall be entitled to attend
meetings in place of a regular Member, subject to the substitute Member
having received appropriate training.

(d)(c) In relation to the Climate Emergency Advisory Committee, the Council shall
appoint substitute members via nominations from group Whips. Each Whip
shall nominate one substitute for each member that sits on the Committee. A
nominated member shall be entitled to attend meetings in place of a regular
member.
(e)(d) In relation to the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee, the Council
shall appoint substitute members via nominations from group Whips. Each
Whip shall nominate one substitute for each member that sits on the
Committee. Whips may not nominate any members that would be excluded
from full membership under the provisions of Article 9 of the Constitution.
(f)(e) In relation to the General Purposes Committee, an Executive Member,
Deputy Executive Member, group leader or deputy group leader, group whip
or assistant whip, shall be entitled to attend meetings in place of a regular
member of the Committee.
(g)(f) In relation to Scrutiny Boards, any non-executive member is eligible to attend
in the place of an absent scrutiny board member.
(h)(g) In relation to Standards and Conduct Committee, the Council shall appoint
substitute members via nominations from group Whips. Each Whip shall
nominate one substitute for each member that sits on the Committee. A
27
28

Nominations to be made in writing or by email to the Head of Democratic Governance Services
In accordance with Article 8 of the Constitution.
Part 4(a)
Page 21 of 23
Issue 1– 2020/21
Last amended on

Page 31

Council Procedure Rules
nominated member shall be entitled to attend meetings in place of a regular
member, subject to the substitute member having received appropriate
training.
(i)(h) In relation to the Health and Wellbeing Board
 the Council shall appoint substitute Members via nominations from
group Whips. Each Whip shall nominate one substitute for each
Member that sits on the Board; and
 any non-voting representative of each Clinical Commissioning Group
and of Healthwatch Leeds appointed by the Health and Wellbeing
Board, may substitute for a relevant voting representative.
 the named substitute from the Third Sector can attend and participate
in meetings and vote in the absence of the Third Sector member
appointed to the Board.
(j)(i)

In relation to Community Committees
 Elected members cannot be substituted
 Where a representative from a designated organisation has been coopted on to the Community Committee, that member can be
substituted by another representative from that organisation, subject
to the Chair being informed before the meeting of the proposed
substitution.

26.2

Substitution
A substitute member shall be entitled to attend in place of a regular member
provided that the Committee Clerk has been notified of this before the meeting
begins. Once the meeting has begun, the regular member in respect of whom
notification has been received, shall no longer be entitled to attend that meeting as
a member of the committee concerned.

26.3 Powers and Duties
A substitute member shall be for all purposes a duly appointed member of the
committee to which s/he is appointed as a substitute member for the meeting in
question. Substitute members will have all the powers and duties of any regular
member of the committee, but will not be able to exercise any special powers or
duties exercisable by the person for whom they are substituting.
27.0

SPECIAL MEETINGS OF COMMITTEES

27.1

The Chair of a committee established under Rule 1.1(j), may call a meeting at any
time. A special meeting shall also be called on the requisition of any three Members
of such committees delivered in writing to the Chief Executive. The Agenda for
such a special meeting shall set out the business to be considered thereat and no
business other than that set out in the Agenda shall be considered at that meeting.
Part 4(a)
Page 22 of 23
Issue 1– 2020/21
Last amended on

Page 32

Council Procedure Rules

28.0

QUORUM OF COMMITTEES AND SUB-COMMITTEES

28.1

Four Members (including the Chair) shall form a quorum in committees established
under Rule 1.1(j), except as follows:

28.2

The quorum for the Employment Committee shall be two, including one Member of
the Executive Board.

28.3

The quorum for a meeting of a Community Committee shall be satisfied if at least
one half29 of the Elected Ward Members are present

28.4

The quorum for the Licensing Committee shall be as set out in the Licensing
Procedure Rules.

28.5

The quorum of any sub-committee shall be determined by the appointing
committee.

28.6

The quorum of the Health and Wellbeing Board shall be four, including one
councillor and a CCG representative.

28.7 Except where authorised by statute, business shall not be transacted at a meeting
unless a quorum is present

29

For a Community Committee of twelve Members the quorum shall be six; for a Community Committee of
nine Members the quorum shall be five.
Part 4(a)
Page 23 of 23
Issue 1– 2020/21
Last amended on

Page 33

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
Report author: A Hodson
Tel: 88660

Report of City Solicitor
Report to General Purposes Committee
Date: 8th March 2021
Subject: Adoption of the Local Government Association Model Councillor Code of
Conduct and Amendments to the Procedure for Considering Complaints Alleging a
Failure to Comply with the Members’ Code of Conduct
Yes

No

Has consultation been carried out?

Yes

No

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and
integration?

Yes

No

Will the decision be open for call-in?

Yes

No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

Yes

No

Are specific electoral wards affected?
If yes, name(s) of ward(s):

If relevant, access to information procedure rule number:
Appendix number:

Summary
1. Main issues




Following extensive consultation the Local Government Association (LGA)
Executive approved a Model Councillor Code of Conduct (Code) in December
2020. The Standards and Conduct Committee consider that there is considerable
benefit to the Council from adopting in full the LGA`s Model Code and thus the
council playing its part in achieving consistency across the Country in this important
area.
The Standards and Conduct Committee have also reviewed the Procedure
Considering Complaints Alleging a Failure to Comply with the Members’ Code of
Conduct and recommend amendments to ensure it remains up to date and fit for
purpose.

2. Best Council Plan implications (see the latest version of the Best Council Plan)


The LGA Code provides a framework compatible with the Council’s Values of being
open, honest and trusted and treating people fairly.

Page 35

3. Resource implications


Whilst there are no specific implications arising from this report, the Monitoring
Officer will need to assign resources to deliver training on any amended Code of
Conduct.

Recommendations
General Purposes Committee is asked to recommend to Full Council:
a) Adoption of the Councillor Code of Conduct as set out at Appendix 1 with effect
from the Annual Council Meeting;
b) Approval of the amendments to the Procedure for Considering Complaints Alleging
a Failure to Comply with the Members’ Code of Conduct set out at Appendix 2
1.

Purpose of this report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to present recommendations from the Standards and
Conduct Committee in respect to the Council’s ethical framework – specifically the
adoption of a new Code of Conduct for local councillors and amendments to the
procedure for considering code of conduct complaints.

2.

Background information

2.1

The Localism Act 2011 placed a duty on the council to promote and maintain high
standards of conduct by members and co-opted members of the authority and in
discharging that duty adopt a code dealing with the conduct that is expected of
those members when they are acting in that capacity.

2.2

In January 2019 the Committee on Standards in Public Life (CSPL) published a
report following their review of local authority standards. The report directed a
series of recommendations to Government and to the local government sector.

2.3

Leeds made changes to the Code of Conduct at that time in order that the
arrangements in Leeds continued to meet best practice requirements.

2.4

A key recommendation of the CSPL was directed to the Local Government
Association “The Local Government Association should create an updated
model code of conduct, in consultation with representative bodies of
councillors and officers of all tiers of local government.”

2.5

The CSPL review concluded that a model code of conduct would create consistency
across England, and reflect the common expectations of the public regardless of
geography or tier. It would also reduce the potential for confusion among dualhatted or triple-hatted councillors.

2.6

CSPL also considered that matters such as gifts and hospitality, social media use,
and bullying and harassment had all increased in salience, and were perhaps not
regularly reflected in local authority codes of conduct and a model code of conduct
would help to ensure that they do so.

2.7

Following extensive consultation the Local Government Association (LGA)
Executive approved a Model Councillor Code of Conduct (‘Code’) in December
2020. The Model Code provides a template for councils to adopt in whole and/or
with local amendments.

Page 36

2.8

The LGA have committed to undertake an annual review of the Code to ensure it
continues to be fit-for-purpose, incorporating advances in technology, social media
and changes in legislation.

2.9

The LGA will also offer support, training and mediation to councils and councillors
on the application of the Code and the National Association of Local Councils
(NALC) and the county associations of local councils will be offering advice and
support to town and parish councils.

3.

Main issues

3.1

The Standards and Conduct Committee’s role is to advise the authority in relation to
the adoption, revision or replacement of the code dealing with the conduct that is
expected of members and co-opted members of the authority when they are acting
in that capacity.

3.2

The committee met on the 5th February 2021 and considered both the LGA Model
Councillor Code of Conduct and the Procedure for Considering Complaints Alleging
a Failure to comply with the Members’ Code of Conduct. This report presents
recommendations arising from the committee’s deliberations.
LGA Model Councillor Code of Conduct

3.3

The Code (attached at Addendum 1) contains much of the existing Leeds’ Code of
Conduct although provides welcome guidance to explain the rationale for the
obligations and how Members should follow them.
Application of the Code

3.4

The Code provides clarity that the requirements of the Code apply as soon as a
councillor signs their declaration of acceptance of office or, in the case of a co-opted
member, attends the first meeting, and continues to apply until a member ceases to
be a councillor.

3.5

Additional clarification is also provided as to the types of interactions that amount to
duties of a Members’ elected office and that would so be captured under the Code’s
remit and application – these are when a councillor is;

3.6



Acting in their capacity as a councillor and/or a representative of the council;



Claiming to act as a councillor and/or as a representative of the council;



Giving the impression of acting as a councillor or a representative of the
council;



Referring publically to their role as a councillor and using knowledge that
could only be obtained in that role.

The Code also provides clear guidance as to the forms and type of communication
that are within scope;

at face-to-face meetings;



online or telephone meetings;



in written communication;



in verbal and non-verbal communication;

Page 37



in electronic and social media communication, posts, statements and comments.

Use of local authority resources
3.7

This is a new provision and is not currently contained in the Leeds’ Code.
Confidentiality and Access to Information

3.8

Specific requirements in relation to confidentiality and access to information have
been incorporated. This clause sets out standards of conduct relating to the proper
use of information by Members.
Gifts and Hospitality

3.9

The provisions extend those set out in the Leeds’ code in two ways:


by specifically referencing a requirement to not accept gifts or hospitality that
could give rise to real or substantive personal gain or a suspicion of
influence, and;



by placing a responsibility on Members to register any significant gift or
hospitality that has been offered but refused.

Protecting the reputation of members and the local authority
3.10 This section primarily relates to the registration and declaration of interests.
Importantly the section references a separate Appendix 1 (Appendix B) that, if
adopted, would place additional requirements on Members in certain
circumstances.
3.11 An example being where a matter arises (which is not a pecuniary interest) at a
meeting and that matter directly relates to a financial interest or wellbeing of a
relative or close friend a Member – extract below.
8.

Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects –
a.
your own financial interest or well-being;
b.
a financial interest or well-being of a friend, relative,
close associate; or
c.
a body included in those you need to declare under
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests you must disclose the
interest.

3.12 Members of the Standards and Conduct Committee were concerned that this
requirement, if left unqualified, would place an unreasonable and unfair obligation
on Members which goes beyond the legal requirements of the Localism Act 2011.
3.13 Members commented that having an obligation to declare interests of friends,
relatives or close associates that are not known, would be somewhat vague and
does not provide a reasonable framework within which to ask Members to conduct
themselves. The Standards and Conduct Committee were also concerned that
‘friend’, ‘relative’ and ‘close associate’ was not sufficiently defined within the model
code – also accepted this was difficult to do within the confines of the code.

Page 38

3.14 The Standards and Conduct Committee did acknowledge that a qualification on the
declaration requirements by, for example, insertion of the word ‘known’, would
provide greater certainty and comfort to Members – but expressed caution in
incorporating the requirements for declaring interests of friend, relative or close
associate highlighted at para 8 b) above as proposed by the LGA.
3.15 The draft Councillor Code of Conduct presented at Appendix 1 incorporates the
qualification referenced above and provides a basis for General Purposes
Committee to consider whether this is acceptable approach or whether any
recommendation for adoption of a revised code of conduct should rather be on the
basis of removal of any requirement relating to declaration obligations concerning
friends, relatives or close associates.
Training
3.16 A programme of training, based on LGA learning and guidance modules, will be coordinated by the Monitoring Officer and her staff from April-May with new Members
being trained prior to the Annual Council Meeting.
Procedure for Considering Complaints Alleging a Failure to Comply with the
Members’ Code of Conduct
3.17 The Standards and Conduct Committee routinely review the operation of the
complaints procedure to ensure it remains up to date and fit for purpose. The
review is informed by issues that arise during the year and feedback received by
complainants and Members who have been the
3.18 The Complaints Procedure requires the Monitoring Officer, at Stage 1, to assess
complaints to determine whether they are valid or invalid. In seeking to establish
the circumstances and reach an assessment conclusion, the Monitoring Officer
routinely accesses readily obtainable information; this includes requesting
observations and recollections from the Member who is the subject of the complaint.
3.19 Currently Paragraph 7 of the Complaints Procedure sits at odds with this necessary
engagement with Members in that it stipulates the following:
“In all cases where the complaint names a Member of a relevant authority, the
Member will be notified of the complaint. If the Monitoring Officer decides that the
complaint is ‘invalid’, this notification is made for information only.”
3.20 For the purposes of transparency, openness and clarity, the Standards and Conduct
Committee recommend that an amendment is made to Paragraph 7 of the
Complaints Procedure, to remove the second sentence of that paragraph to make
clear that the comments of Members will be routinely sought as part of the
assessment process.
3.21 The Standards and Conduct Committee also recommends that further consideration
be given to the criteria used at Assessment listed at Paragraph 6 of the procedure.
3.22 These amendments enable the Council to efficiently and effectively filter out those
complaints that are trivial or which have little or no impact on the public. It also
provides a clear framework to avoid engaging or carrying out investigations that are
disproportionate to any outcome that can be achieved or sanction imposed and
focus resources on matters of substance and that are in the public interest (i.e. are
serious, such as corruption, bullying and misuse of power in public office).
3.23 The amendments recommended by the Standards and Conduct Committee are set
out as tracked changes at Appendix 1, and General Purposes Committee are asked
to consider these and recommend them to Full Council for approval.

Page 39

4.

Corporate considerations

4.1

Consultation and engagement

4.1.1 The LGA consulted widely on the content of the Model Code, receiving in excess of
1500 submissions from the local government sector and stakeholders. The LGA
has committed to review the content of the Model Code on an Annual basis.
4.1.2 In advance of Standards and Conduct Committee considering the proposal to adopt
the Model LGA Code the Chair of the Standards, Cllr Nash, consulted with Political
Group Leaders and Whips. The Labour, Conservative, Liberal Democratic, Garforth
and Swillington and Green Group whips have both advised that their groups are
supportive of adoption of the LGA Model Code by the Council.
4.1.3 Parish and Town Councils in Leeds have been provided with details of the LGA
Model Code. In response a number of councils have indicated that they have either
adopted the LGA Model Code or are exploring doing so.
4.1.4 The Head of Democratic Services has also approached the Committee on
Standards in Public Life for their views on the LGA Model Code. The secretariat
has confirmed that the CSPL views the model code of conduct as a welcome step,
helping to set clear standards and avoid confusion for both councillors and
members of the public alike.
4.1.5 The views of the Standards and Conduct Committee are incorporated in this report.
4.2

Equality and diversity / cohesion and integration

4.2.1 The Code specifically incorporates requirements in relation to equalities and
discrimination.
4.3

Council policies and the Best Council Plan

4.3.1 The Code provides a framework compatible with the Council’s Values of being
open, honest and trusted and treating people fairly.
Climate Emergency
4.3.2 There are no specific implications arising from this report.
4.4

Resources, procurement and value for money

4.4.1 Whilst there are no specific implications arising from this report, the Monitoring
Officer will need to assign resources to deliver training on any amended Code of
Conduct.
4.5

Legal implications, access to information, and call-in

4.5.1 The Model Code is compliant with the requirements of the Localism Act 2011 and
adoption of it will be compliant with the duties placed on the council.
4.5.2 Additional amendments to the Code, and to the conduct regime more generally,
may emerge when the recommendations from the CSPL report concerning local
authority standards directed to Government are responded to.
Page 40

4.6

Risk management

4.6.1 There are no specific implications arising from this report.
5.

Conclusions

5.1

The LGA consulted widely with the local government sector and other stakeholders
and the approved attached “Code” has benefitted from that scrutiny being
substantially improved from the draft which the Standards and Conduct Committee
commented on last summer.

5.2

The LGA Code is similar to the adopted Leeds Code and there is considerable
benefit to the Council from adopting in full the LGA`s Model Councillor Code of
Conduct.

5.3

The proposed amendments to the Procedure for Considering Complaints Alleging a
Failure to comply with the Members’ Code of Conduct will ensure the arrangements
remains up to date and fit for purpose.

6.

Recommendations

6.1

General Purposes Committee is asked to recommend to Full Council:
a) Adoption of the Councillor Code of Conduct as set out at Appendix 1 with effect
from the Annual Council Meeting;
b) Approval of the amendments to the Procedure for Considering Complaints
Alleging a Failure to Comply with the Members’ Code of Conduct set out at
Appendix 2

7.

Background documents1

7.1

There are no background documents associated with this report.

The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the council’s website, unless they
contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include published works.
1

Page 41

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 1

Draft
Councillor Code of
Conduct1

1

Adapted from the LGA Model Councillor Code of Conduct
Part 5(a)
Page 1 of 17
Issue 1 – 2021/22
Amended on xxxx 2021

Page 43

Definitions
For the purposes of this Code of Conduct, a “councillor” means a member or coopted
member of a local authority or a directly elected mayor. A “co-opted member” is
defined in the Localism Act 2011 Section 27(4) as “a person who is not a member of
the authority but who
a) is a member of any committee or sub-committee of the authority, or;
b) is a member of, and represents the authority on, any joint committee or joint
sub-committee of the authority;
and who is entitled to vote on any question that falls to be decided at any meeting of
that committee or sub-committee”.
Purpose of the Code of Conduct
The purpose of this Code of Conduct is to assist you, as a councillor, in modelling
the behaviour that is expected of you, to provide a personal check and balance, and
to set out the type of conduct that could lead to action being taken against you. It is
also to protect you, the public, fellow councillors, local authority officers and the
reputation of local government. It sets out general principles of conduct expected of
all councillors and your specific obligations in relation to standards of conduct.
The Standards and Conduct Committee encourages the use of support, training and
mediation prior to action being taken using the Code. The fundamental aim of the
Code is to create and maintain public confidence in the role of councillor and local
government.
General principles of councillor conduct
Everyone in public office at all levels; all who serve the public or deliver public
services, including ministers, civil servants, councillors and local authority officers;
should uphold the Seven Principles of Public Life, also known as the Nolan
Principles.
Building on these principles, the following general principles have been developed
specifically for the role of councillor.
In accordance with the public trust placed in me, on all occasions:
•
•
•
•

I act with integrity and honesty
I act lawfully
I treat all persons fairly and with respect; and
I lead by example and act in a way that secures public confidence in the role
of councillor.

Part 5(a)
Page 2 of 17
Issue 1 – 2021/22
Amended on xxxx 2021

Page 44

In undertaking my role:
•
•
•
•
•

I impartially exercise my responsibilities in the interests of the local community
I do not improperly seek to confer an advantage, or disadvantage, on any
person
I avoid conflicts of interest
I exercise reasonable care and diligence; and
I ensure that public resources are used prudently in accordance with my local
authority’s requirements and in the public interest.

Application of the Code of Conduct
This Code of Conduct applies to you as soon as you sign your declaration of
acceptance of the office of councillor or attend your first meeting as a co-opted
member and continues to apply to you until you cease to be a councillor.
This Code of Conduct applies to you when:
•

you are acting in your capacity as a councillor and/or as a representative of
your council

•

you are claiming to act as a councillor and/or as a representative of your
council

•

you are giving the impression that you are acting as a councillor and/or as a
representative of your council

•

you refer publicly to your role as a councillor or use knowledge you could only
obtain in your role as a councillor.

The Code applies to all forms of communication and interaction, including:
•

at face-to-face meetings

•

at online or telephone meetings

•

in written communication

•

in verbal communication

•

in non-verbal communication

•

in electronic and social media communication, posts, statements and
comments.

You are also expected to uphold high standards of conduct and show leadership at
all times.
The Monitoring Officer has statutory responsibility for the implementation of the
Code of Conduct, and you are encouraged to seek advice from the Monitoring
Officer on any matters that may relate to the Code of Conduct.
Part 5(a)
Page 3 of 17
Issue 1 – 2021/22
Amended on xxxx 2021

Page 45

Standards of councillor conduct
This section sets out your obligations, which are the minimum standards of conduct
required of you as a councillor. Should your conduct fall short of these standards, a
complaint may be made against you, which may result in action being taken.
Guidance is included to help explain the reasons for the obligations and how they
should be followed.
General Conduct
1. Respect
As a councillor:
1.1 I treat other councillors and members of the public with respect.
1.2 I treat local authority employees, employees and representatives of
partner organisations and those volunteering for the local authority with
respect and respect the role they play.
Respect means politeness and courtesy in behaviour, speech, and in the written
word. Debate and having different views are all part of a healthy democracy. As a
councillor, you can express, challenge, criticise and disagree with views, ideas,
opinions and policies in a robust but civil manner. You should not, however, subject
individuals, groups of people or organisations to personal attack.
In your contact with the public, you should treat them politely and courteously. Rude
and offensive behaviour lowers the public’s expectations and confidence in
councillors.
In return, you have a right to expect respectful behaviour from the public. If members
of the public are being abusive, intimidatory or threatening you are entitled to stop
any conversation or interaction in person or online and report them to the local
authority, the relevant social media provider or the police. This also applies to fellow
councillors, where action could then be taken under the Councillor Code of Conduct,
and local authority employees, where concerns should be raised in line with the local
authority’s councillor-officer protocol.

Part 5(a)
Page 4 of 17
Issue 1 – 2021/22
Amended on xxxx 2021

Page 46

2. Bullying, harassment and discrimination
As a councillor:
2.1 I do not bully any person.
2.2 I do not harass any person.
2.3 I promote equalities and do not discriminate unlawfully against any
person.

The Advisory, Conciliation and Arbitration Service (ACAS) characterises bullying as
offensive, intimidating, malicious or insulting behaviour, an abuse or misuse of power
through means that undermine, humiliate, denigrate or injure the recipient. Bullying
might be a regular pattern of behaviour or a one-off incident, happen face-to-face, on
social media, in emails or phone calls, happen in the workplace or at work social
events and may not always be obvious or noticed by others.
The Protection from Harassment Act 1997 defines harassment as conduct that
causes alarm or distress or puts people in fear of violence and must involve such
conduct on at least two occasions. It can include repeated attempts to impose
unwanted communications and contact upon a person in a manner that could be
expected to cause distress or fear in any reasonable person.
Unlawful discrimination is where someone is treated unfairly because of a protected
characteristic. Protected characteristics are specific aspects of a person's identity
defined by the Equality Act 2010. They are age, disability, gender reassignment,
marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex
and sexual orientation.
The Equality Act 2010 places specific duties on local authorities. Councillors have a
central role to play in ensuring that equality issues are integral to the local authority's
performance and strategic aims, and that there is a strong vision and public
commitment to equality across public services.

Part 5(a)
Page 5 of 17
Issue 1 – 2021/22
Amended on xxxx 2021

Page 47

3. Impartiality of officers of the council
As a councillor:
3.1 I do not compromise, or attempt to compromise, the impartiality of
anyone who works for, or on behalf of, the local authority.
Officers work for the local authority as a whole and must be politically neutral (unless
they are political assistants). They should not be coerced or persuaded to act in a
way that would undermine their neutrality. You can question officers in order to
understand, for example, their reasons for proposing to act in a particular way, or the
content of a report that they have written. However, you must not try and force them
to act differently, change their advice, or alter the content of that report, if doing so
would prejudice their professional integrity.
4. Confidentiality and access to information
As a councillor:
4.1 I do not disclose information:
a. given to me in confidence by anyone
b. acquired by me which I believe, or ought reasonably to be
aware, is of a confidential nature, unless
i. I have received the consent of a person authorised to
give it;
ii. I am required by law to do so;
iii. the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of
obtaining professional legal advice provided that the
third party agrees not to disclose the information to any
other person; or
iv. the disclosure is:
1. reasonable and in the public interest; and
2. made in good faith and in compliance with the
reasonable requirements of the local authority; and
3. I have consulted the Monitoring Officer prior to its
release.
4.2 I do not improperly use knowledge gained solely as a result of my role
as a councillor for the advancement of myself, my friends, my family
members, my employer or my business interests.
4.3 I do not prevent anyone from getting information that they are entitled
to by law.

Part 5(a)
Page 6 of 17
Issue 1 – 2021/22
Amended on xxxx 2021

Page 48

Local authorities must work openly and transparently, and their proceedings and
printed materials are open to the public, except in certain legally defined
circumstances. You should work on this basis, but there will be times when it is
required by law that discussions, documents and other information relating to or held
by the local authority must be treated in a confidential manner. Examples include
personal data relating to individuals or information relating to ongoing negotiations.
5. Disrepute
As a councillor:
5.1 I do not bring my role or local authority into disrepute.
As a councillor, you are trusted to make decisions on behalf of your community and
your actions and behaviour are subject to greater scrutiny than that of ordinary
members of the public. You should be aware that your actions might have an
adverse impact on you, other councillors and/or your local authority and may lower
the public’s confidence in your or your local authority’s ability to discharge your/it’s
functions. For example, behaviour that is considered dishonest and/or deceitful can
bring your local authority into disrepute.
You are able to hold the local authority and fellow councillors to account and are able
to constructively challenge and express concern about decisions and processes
undertaken by the council whilst continuing to adhere to other aspects of this Code of
Conduct.

Part 5(a)
Page 7 of 17
Issue 1 – 2021/22
Amended on xxxx 2021

Page 49

6. Use of position
As a councillor:
6.1 I do not use, or attempt to use, my position improperly to the advantage
or disadvantage of myself or anyone else.
Your position as a member of the local authority provides you with certain
opportunities, responsibilities and privileges, and you make choices all the time that
will impact others. However, you should not take advantage of these opportunities to
further your own or others’ private interests or to disadvantage anyone unfairly.
7. Use of local authority resources and facilities
As a councillor:
7.1 I do not misuse council resources.
7.2 I will, when using the resources of the local or authorising their use by
others:
a.
act in accordance with the local authority's requirements; and
b.
ensure that such resources are not used for political purposes
unless that use could reasonably be regarded as likely to
facilitate, or be conducive to, the discharge of the functions of the
local authority or of the office to which I have been elected or
appointed.
You may be provided with resources and facilities by the local authority to assist you
in carrying out your duties as a councillor.
Examples include:
•
•
•
•
•

office support
stationery
equipment such as phones, and computers
transport
access and use of local authority buildings and rooms.

These are given to you to help you carry out your role as a councillor more effectively
and are not to be used for business or personal gain. They should be used in
accordance with the purpose for which they have been provided and the local
authority’s own policies regarding their use.

Part 5(a)
Page 8 of 17
Issue 1 – 2021/22
Amended on xxxx 2021

Page 50

8. Complying with the Code of Conduct
As a councillor:
8.1 I undertake Code of Conduct training provided by my local authority.
8.2 I cooperate with any Code of Conduct investigation and/or
determination.
8.3 I do not intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is likely to
be involved with the administration of any investigation or proceedings.
8.4 I comply with any sanction imposed on me following a finding that I
have breached the Code of Conduct.
It is extremely important for you as a councillor to demonstrate high standards, for
you to have your actions open to scrutiny and for you not to undermine public trust in
the local authority or its governance. If you do not understand or are concerned
about the local authority’s processes in handling a complaint you should raise this
with your Monitoring Officer.
Protecting your reputation and the reputation of the local authority
9. Interests
As a councillor:
9.1 I register and declare my interests.
You need to register your interests so that the public, local authority employees and
fellow councillors know which of your interests might give rise to a conflict of interest.
The register is a public document that can be consulted when (or before) an issue
arises. The register also protects you by allowing you to demonstrate openness and
a willingness to be held accountable. You are personally responsible for deciding
whether or not you should declare an interest in a meeting, but it can be helpful for
you to know early on if others think that a potential conflict might arise. It is also
important that the public know about any interest that might have to be declared by
you or other councillors when making or taking part in decisions, so that decision
making is seen by the public as open and honest. This helps to ensure that public
confidence in the integrity of local governance is maintained.
You should note that failure to register or declare a disclosable pecuniary (i.e.
financial) interest is a criminal offence under the Localism Act 2011.
Appendix B sets out the detailed provisions on registering and declaring interests. If
in doubt, you should always seek advice from your Monitoring Officer.

Part 5(a)
Page 9 of 17
Issue 1 – 2021/22
Amended on xxxx 2021

Page 51

10. Gifts and hospitality As a councillor:
10.1
I do not accept gifts or hospitality, irrespective of estimated value,
which could give rise to real or substantive personal gain or a
reasonable suspicion of influence on my part to show favour from
persons seeking to acquire, develop or do business with the local
authority or from persons who may apply to the local authority for any
permission, licence or other significant advantage.
10.2
I register with the Monitoring Officer any gift or hospitality with an
estimated value of at least £50 within 28 days of its receipt.
10.3
I register with the Monitoring Officer any significant gift or
hospitality that I have been offered but have refused to accept.
In order to protect your position and the reputation of the local authority, you should
exercise caution in accepting any gifts or hospitality which are (or which you
reasonably believe to be) offered to you because you are a councillor. The
presumption should always be not to accept significant gifts or hospitality. However,
there may be times when such a refusal may be difficult if it is seen as rudeness in
which case you could accept it but must ensure it is publicly registered. However,
you do not need to register gifts and hospitality which are not related to your role as
a councillor, such as Christmas gifts from your friends and family. It is also important
to note that it is appropriate to accept normal expenses and hospitality associated
with your duties as a councillor. If you are unsure, do contact your Monitoring Officer
for guidance.

Part 5(a)
Page 10 of 17
Issue 1 – 2021/22
Amended on xxxx 2021

Page 52

Part 5(a)
Page 11 of 17
Issue 1 – 2021/22
Amended on xxxx 2021

Page 53

Appendices
Appendix A – The Seven Principles of Public Life The
principles are:
Selflessness
Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest.
Integrity
Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to
people or organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work.
They should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other material
benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends. They must declare and resolve
any interests and relationships.
Objectivity
Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit,
using the best evidence and without discrimination or bias.
Accountability
Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions
and must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this.
Openness
Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent
manner. Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear
and lawful reasons for so doing.
Honesty
Holders of public office should be truthful.
Leadership
Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour. They
should actively promote and robustly support the principles and be willing to
challenge poor behaviour wherever it occurs.

Part 5(a)
Page 12 of 17
Issue 1 – 2021/22
Amended on xxxx 2021

Page 54

Appendix B
Registering interests
1. Within 28 days of this Code of Conduct being adopted by the local authority or
your election or appointment to office (where that is later) you must register
with the Monitoring Officer the interests which fall within the categories set out
in Table 1 (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) and Table 2 (Other Registerable
Interests). Disclosable Pecuniary Interests means issues relating to money
and finances.
2. You must ensure that your register of interests is kept up-to-date and within
28 days of becoming aware of any new interest, or of any change to a
registered interest, notify the Monitoring Officer.
3. A ‘sensitive interest’ is as an interest which, if disclosed, could lead to the
councillor/member or co-opted member, or a person connected with the
member or co-opted member, being subject to violence or intimidation.
4. Where you have a ‘sensitive interest’ you must notify the Monitoring Officer
with the reasons why you believe it is a sensitive interest. If the Monitoring
Officer agrees they will withhold the interest from the public register.
Declaring interests
5. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates one of your
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, you must declare the interest, not participate
in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room
unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you
do not have to declare the nature of the interest, just that you have an
interest.
6. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Other
Registerable Interests, you must declare the interest. You may speak on the
matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting
but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and
must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If
it is a ‘sensitive interest’, again you do not have to declare the nature of the
interest.
7. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial
interest or well-being (and is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest) or a
financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate, you must
Part 5(a)
Page 13 of 17
Issue 1 – 2021/22
Amended on xxxx 2021

Page 55

declare the interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the
public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but otherwise must not take
part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room
unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you
do not have to declare the nature of the interest.
8. Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects –
a. your own financial interest or well-being;
b. a known financial interest or well-being of a friend, relative, close
associate; or
c. a body included in those you need to declare under Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests you must disclose the interest.
9. Where the matter affects the financial interest or well-being:
a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority
of inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and;
b. a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe
that it would affect your view of the wider public interest
you must declare the interest. You may speak on the matter only if members
of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but otherwise must not
take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the
room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive
interest’, you do not have to declare the nature of the interest.

Part 5(a)
Page 14 of 17
Issue 1 – 2021/22
Amended on xxxx 2021

Page 56

Table 1: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
This table sets out the explanation of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in
the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012.
Subject
Description
Any employment, office, trade,
Employment, office, trade,
profession or vocation carried on for
profession or vocation
profit or gain.
[Any unpaid directorship.]
Any payment or provision of any other
Sponsorship
financial benefit (other than from the
council) made to the councillor during
the previous 12-month period for
expenses incurred by him/her in
carrying out his/her duties as a
councillor, or towards his/her election
expenses.
This includes any payment or financial
benefit from a trade union within the
meaning of the Trade Union and Labour
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.
Contracts
Any contract made between the
councillor or his/her spouse or civil
partner or the person with whom the

Land and Property

councillor is living as if they were
spouses/civil partners (or a firm in which
such person is a partner, or an
incorporated body of which such person
is a director* or a body that such person
has a beneficial interest in the securities
of*) and the council —
(a)
under which goods or services
are to be provided or works are to be
executed; and
(b)
which has not been fully
discharged.
Any beneficial interest in land which is
within the area of the council.
‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude,
interest or right in or over land which
does not give the councillor or his/her
spouse or civil partner or the person
with whom the councillor is living as if
they were spouses/ civil partners (alone
Part 5(a)
Page 15 of 17
Issue 1 – 2021/22
Amended on xxxx 2021

Page 57

or jointly with another) a right to occupy
or to receive income.

Licences

Corporate tenancies

Securities

Any licence (alone or jointly with others)
to occupy land in the area of the council
for a month or longer
Any tenancy where (to the councillor’s
knowledge)—
(a) the landlord is the council; and (b)
the tenant is a body that the councillor,
or his/her spouse or civil partner or the
person with whom the councillor is
living as if they were spouses/ civil
partners is a partner of or a director* of
or has a beneficial interest in the
securities* of.
Any beneficial interest in securities* of a
body where—
(a)
that body (to the councillor’s
knowledge) has a place of business or
land in the area of the council; and
(b)
either—
(i)
the total nominal value of the
securities* exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share
capital of that body; or
(ii)
if the share capital of that body is
of more than one class, the total nominal
value of the shares of any one class in
which the councillor, or his/ her spouse
or civil partner or the person with whom
the councillor is living as if they were
spouses/civil partners has a beneficial
interest exceeds one hundredth of the
total issued share capital of that class.

Part 5(a)
Page 16 of 17
Issue 1 – 2021/22
Amended on xxxx 2021

Page 58

*
‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial
and provident society.
*
‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds,
units of a collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services
and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money
deposited with a building society.
Table 2: Other Registerable Interests
Any Body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or
management and to which you are appointed or nominated by the council;
Any Body (a) exercising functions of a public
nature;
(b) directed to charitable purposes; or
(c) one of whose principal purposes
includes the influence of public opinion
or policy (including any political party or
trade union)
of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management.

Part 5(a)
Page 17 of 17
Issue 1 – 2021/22
Amended on xxxx 2021

Page 59

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 1
Procedure for considering complaints alleging a failure to comply with a Members’
Code of Conduct
PROCEDURE FOR CONSIDERING COMPLAINTS ALLEGING A FAILURE TO
COMPLY WITH A MEMBERS’ CODE OF CONDUCT WITHIN THE AREA OF
LEEDS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT COUNCIL
Introduction
1. This procedure should be used to deal with complaints submitted under the
Members’ Code of Conduct adopted by Leeds City Council and the Parish and
Town Councils in the Leeds area.
2. The Members’ Code of Conduct applies to elected Members and voting co-opted
members when they are acting in that capacity. Complaints which relate to a
failure to comply with the rules about ‘Disclosable Pecuniary Interests’ should be
directed to the West Yorkshire Police for their consideration. Complaints about a
potential breach of the general obligations should be submitted to the Monitoring
Officer for consideration.
3. The Monitoring Officer may nominate another officer of suitable experience and
seniority to carry out any of the functions listed in this procedure.
Stage 1 - Initial assessment by the Monitoring Officer
4. Complaints must be submitted in writing1, must provide substantiated information,
and should outline what form of resolution the complainant is seeking. Otherwise
the Monitoring Officer should ask the complainant to resubmit their complaint.
Ideally the complainant will use the correct complaints form to submit their
complaint, but other written complaints will be accepted so long as they contain
the relevant information.
5. The Monitoring Officer will consider assess the complaint2 in consultation with the
Independent Person and make a decision as to whether it is valid or not valid and
further action would be proportionate and/or in the public interest. The Council
will ‘Take No Further Action’ where a complaint appears to be intended to cause
annoyance, frustration or worry (vexatious), is intended to do harm (malicious), or
where it is apparent that a complaint has little or no substance (frivolous),
particularly in terms of value or importance to the wider Public Interest (i.e. trivial
complaints). or;
a. it will be treated as a valid complaint or not.

1

Complaints about the conduct of a parish or town councillor towards a clerk should be made by the
chair or the by the parish or town council as a whole, rather than by the clerk in all but exceptional
circumstances.
2 Including seeking and reviewing any readily obtainable information (including observations and
recollections from the Subject Member).
Part 4(k)
Page 1 of 9
Consultation with Standards and Conduct Committee 5/2/21
Document Last amended on 22nd May 2019

Page 61

Appendix 1
Procedure for considering complaints alleging a failure to comply with a Members’
Code of Conduct
5.6. The following types of complaint will not be considered as ‘valid complaints’
under this procedure and will result in No Further Action being taken:
a. Complaints which are submitted anonymously3 4;
b. Complaints which do not identify a subject Member;
c. Complaints which relate to a Member’s personal or private life;
d. Complaints concerning a failure to respond to a request from a
constituent or other individual;
e. Complaints which relate to the alleged actions of employees of the
Council or non-voting co-optees;
f. Complaints which relate to a decision of an employee or a Committee;
g. Complaints which relate to a person who is no longer a Member of the
Council or which refer to alleged incidents before the person became a
Member of the Council;
h. Complaints which refer to alleged incidents which happened so long
ago5 that there would be little benefit in taking action now;
i.

i.
j.

Complaints containing trivial allegations, cause annoyance, frustration
or worry (vexatious), or intended to do harm (malicious), or where it is
apparent that a complaint has little or no substance (frivolous),
particularly in terms of value or importance to the wider Public Interest
(i.e. trivial complaints), are politically motivated or tit-for-tat ;
Complaints containing trivial allegations6, or which appear to be simply
malicious, politically motivated or tit-for-tat;
Complaints regarding alleged behaviour which has already been the
subject of an investigation or some form of action, or are more suited
for resolution through alternative means;

k. Complaints which relate to an alleged failure to comply with the rules
regarding ‘Disclosable Pecuniary Interests’7;

Complaints which contain a request for the complainant’s identity to be withheld may be considered
to be ‘valid complaints’, although the complainant’s identity will only be withheld in exceptional
circumstances. If the Monitoring Officer does not consider it appropriate to withhold the complainant’s
identity, the complainant will be given the opportunity to withdraw their complaint before it proceeds to
the next stage.
4 Anonymous complaints which reveal potential fraud or corruption will be referred to Internal Audit for
consideration under the Council’s adopted Whistle blowing Policy
5 In general terms complaints should be submitted within 6 months of the alleged incident
6 Trivial allegations are those where further action would be disproportionate or not in the public
interest
Part 4(k)
Page 2 of 9
Consultation with Standards and Conduct Committee 5/2/21
Document Last amended on 22nd May 2019
3

Page 62

Appendix 1
Procedure for considering complaints alleging a failure to comply with a Members’
Code of Conduct
l. Complaints which do not evidence a failure to comply with obligations
under the Members’ Code of Conduct or otherwise do not relate to the
Members’ Code of Conduct;
m. Complaints that it is not possible to investigate or in relation to which
there is no action which could be taken which would achieve an
outcome sought by the complainant in the circumstances of the case.
6.7. In all cases where the complaint names a Member of a relevant authority, the
Member will be notified of the complaint8. If the Monitoring Officer decides that
the complaint is ‘invalid’, this notification is made for information only.
7.8. If the complaint relates to an employee or is a service related issue, the
Monitoring Officer will refer the complaint to the relevant service in order for them
to respond to the complainant directly.
8.9.
In any case where the Monitoring Officer decides that the complaint
cannot be progressed further under the procedurecomplaint is ‘invalid’, they
will write to the complainant explaining why their complaint cannot be dealt
with under this procedure. There is no Council appeal process for decisions
taken by the Monitoring Officer at this stage9.
Stage 2 - Informal resolution
9.10. If, following initial assessment, the Monitoring Officer decides that the
complaint should be treated as a ‘valid complaint’ they will write to the
complainant and explain that the matter is to be referred to the subject Member
for them to seek to resolve the issue in accordance with this procedure. The
complainant will also be provided with an outline of the procedure for dealing
with complaints against Councillors.
10.11. At the same time the Monitoring Officer will refer the matter to the subject
Member10 and the relevant Group Whip11 for their consideration. In this
correspondence the Monitoring Officer will provide the subject Member with a
reasonable timescale within which to attempt to resolve the complaint (usually

Such complaints will be redirected to the West Yorkshire Police, subject to the complainant’s
agreement.
8 Information shared will include details of the complainant and their complaint. The Subject Member
will receive this information as a data controller in their own right and all usual data protection controls
will apply.
9 Complainants will though be routinely advised of their rights to contact the Local Government and
Social Care Ombudsman.
10 Information shared will include details of the complainant and their complaint. The Subject Member
will receive this information as a data controller in their own right and all usual data protection controls
will apply.
11 If the subject Member is the Group Whip, the complaint will be copied to his or her Group Leader.
In the case of a Parish or Town Council without structured political groups, the Monitoring Officer
could consider involving the Chairperson of the Council.
Part 4(k)
Page 3 of 9
Consultation with Standards and Conduct Committee 5/2/21
Document Last amended on 22nd May 2019
7

Page 63

Appendix 1
Procedure for considering complaints alleging a failure to comply with a Members’
Code of Conduct
this will be 28 days), and will provide the subject Member with the contact details
for the Independent Person12.
11.12. Types of informal resolution might include:
a. An explanation by the subject Member of the circumstances
surrounding the complaint;
b. An apology from the subject Member;
c. An agreement from the subject Member to attend relevant training or to
take part in a mentoring process;
d. Offering to engage in a process of mediation or conciliation between
the subject Member and the complainant; or
e. Any other action capable of resolving the complaint.
12.13. Before deciding upon a course of action the subject Member may seek
guidance from a Group Whip, the Independent Person, and/or the Monitoring
Officer or an appropriate senior person nominated by her. It may also be
advisable appropriate for the Monitoring Officer13 to seek the view of the
complainant to ascertain what form of informal resolution they would find
acceptable, particularly if the form of resolution they have specified in their
complaint is not possible.
13.14. The Independent Person is available to the subject Member to give them
advice on the severity of the complaint and what form of resolution they would
consider appropriate. Providing such guidance will not prevent the Independent
Person from giving a view to the Standards and Conduct Committee about the
complaint at a later stage.
14.15. At the end of the 28 day period the Monitoring Officer will, in consultation with
the Chair of the Standards and Conduct Committee and the Independent Person,
seek to establish whether the subject Member (or Group Whip) has appropriately
addressed matters which have been raised by the complainant.
15.16. Where the subject Member has appropriately addressed the matters raised
there will be no further action taken in respect of the complaint and the Monitoring
Officer will notify both the complainant and the subject Member of this decision.
16.17. Where it has not been possible to appropriately address matters, the
complaint will be referred to the Standards and Conduct Committee for
consideration. The Monitoring Officer will notify both the complainant and the
subject Member of this decision, and will provide the subject Member with
information regarding the Council’s insurance arrangements (and how legal
representation may be accessed).

12
13

See Annex 1 for a summary of the role of the Independent Person.
Or other suitable senior person as appropriate (including that Members’ Whip)
Part 4(k)
Page 4 of 9
Consultation with Standards and Conduct Committee 5/2/21
Document Last amended on 22nd May 2019

Page 64

Appendix 1
Procedure for considering complaints alleging a failure to comply with a Members’
Code of Conduct
17.18. There will be no appeal process for decisions taken by the Monitoring Officer
and the Chair of the Standards and Conduct Committee at this stage.

Stage 3 – Standards and Conduct Committee
18.19. The Monitoring Officer will commission a report for consideration by the
Standards and Conduct Committee. This report will include readily obtainable
information (such as minutes of meetings or Clerk’s notes), a summary of the
complaint and the efforts made to resolve the matter informally.
19.20. The Monitoring Officer must arrange for a meeting of the Standards and
Conduct Committee (or the relevant Sub-Committee14)15 to be convened to
consider the commissioned report of the complaint. Wherever possible the
meeting will take place within 28 days of the report being finalised.
20.21. If the complaint relates to a Parish or Town Councillor, one of the co-opted
Parish Members will be invited to attend the Committee meeting. The Parish
Member will not be entitled to vote at the meeting, but will be entitled to speak at
the discretion of the Chair.

14

Such Sub-Committee will be made up of three Members of the Standards and Conduct Committee,
one of whom must be from the same political group as the subject Member (wherever possible), but
not all of the Members will be from the same political group. The Chair will be elected from among
the membership at the beginning of the meeting, but cannot be from the same political group as the
subject Member.
15 References to the Committee in rules 21 to 36 below shall be read as references to the SubCommittee if such sub-committee has been appointed and is convened to hear the complaint.
Part 4(k)
Page 5 of 9
Consultation with Standards and Conduct Committee 5/2/21
Document Last amended on 22nd May 2019

Page 65

Appendix 1
Procedure for considering complaints alleging a failure to comply with a Members’
Code of Conduct
21.22. The following people will also be invited to attend the Committee meeting:
a. The complainant;
b. The subject Member;
c. The Group Whip (if relevant); and
d. The Independent Person.
22.23. The Monitoring Officer will attend the meeting in order to advise the
Ccommittee.
23.24. At the beginning of the meeting the Committee will be asked to consider
whether the complaint should be considered in private in accordance with the
provisions of Rule 10 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules relating to
exempt information. If the meeting is to be held in private the press and public
will be excluded16.
24.25. After initial consideration of the commissioned report, the Committee will take
statements from the following parties (either in person or in written form if the
person is unable to attend the meeting):
a. The complainant; and
b. The subject Member.
25.26. The Committee may also ask questions of anyone present at the meeting in
order to reach a conclusion on the complaint.
26.27. Before reaching a final decision on the complaint, the Committee must seek,
and take account of, the view of the Independent Person in relation to the
complaint.
27.28. If the Committee is unable to reach a conclusion on the complaint on the
basis of the information before it, it may adjourn the meeting and request that the
Monitoring Officer seeks the further information required. However, when doing
so the Committee should consider whether the information will be readily
available to the Monitoring Officer.
28.29. Once the Committee is satisfied with the information before it, it must decide
the following issues:
a. Whether the subject Member has failed to comply with the Members’
Code of Conduct;

16

The Committee may invite people to remain in the meeting if it is considered that they could provide
information relevant to the complaint.
Part 4(k)
Page 6 of 9
Consultation with Standards and Conduct Committee 5/2/21
Document Last amended on 22nd May 2019

Page 66

Appendix 1
Procedure for considering complaints alleging a failure to comply with a Members’
Code of Conduct
b. Whether further action is warranted; and
c. What form of action might be appropriate.

29.30. If the Committee concludes that, on the balance of probabilities, the subject
Member did not fail to comply with the Members’ Code of Conduct, this will
conclude the complaints process. In such cases no further action will be taken in
respect of the complaint, although the Committee may still wish to consider
making a recommendation to the authority with a view to promoting and
maintaining high standards of conduct in general. Such recommendations may
include proposed changes to internal procedures and practices or training for
Members in general.
30.31. If the Committee concludes that, on the balance of probabilities, the subject
Member has failed to comply with the Members’ Code of Conduct, the Committee
must go on to consider whether action should be recommended in respect of the
subject Member, and what form of action might be appropriate.
31.32. The recommendations available to the Committee include17 but are not limited
to:
a. A formal letter to the subject Member from the Chair of the Standards
and Conduct Committee;
b. Formal censure by a motion of full Council; or
c. Removal by the authority of the Member from a relevant Committee(s)
subject to statutory and constitutional requirements.
32.33. The Committee may make a recommendation in relation to one or more of the
above sanctions to full Council or, if appropriate, the Town or Parish Council, the
Group Whip or the Chair of the Standards and Conduct Committee. The Chair
will confirm any such recommendations in writing within five working days of the
Committee meeting.
33.34. The Committee may also make general recommendations to the authority18
with a view to promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct within the
authority. As stated above, such recommendations may include proposed
changes to internal procedures and practices or training for Members in general.
The Monitoring Officer will be responsible for communicating such
recommendations to the relevant Committee or officer for consideration.
34.35. Within five working days of the meeting, the Chair of the Committee will write
to the complainant and the subject Member explaining the final decision of the
Committee and detailing any recommendations made.

17
18

The committee may not decide to disqualify or suspend the subject Member as a Councillor.
Which shall be Leeds City Council and / or the Town or Parish Council concerned as appropriate
Part 4(k)
Page 7 of 9
Consultation with Standards and Conduct Committee 5/2/21
Document Last amended on 22nd May 2019

Page 67

Appendix 1
Procedure for considering complaints alleging a failure to comply with a Members’
Code of Conduct
35.36. There will be no right of appeal against a decision of the Committee.

Part 4(k)
Page 8 of 9
Consultation with Standards and Conduct Committee 5/2/21
Document Last amended on 22nd May 2019

Page 68

Procedure for considering complaints alleging a failure to comply with a Members’
Code of Conduct
ANNEX 1 - ROLE OF THE ‘INDEPENDENT PERSON’
Role of the Independent Person
The role of the independent person is set out in Section 28 of the Localism Act 2011.
As part of its arrangements under which decisions on allegations can be made, each
principal authority must appoint at least one independent person.
The independent person’s views will be sought, and taken into account, by the
authority before: Making a decision to treat a decision as valid underat Stage 1 of this
procedure
 Making a decision as to whether the subject Member has appropriately
addressed matters raised by the complainant by way of informal resolution at
Stage 2 of this procedure
 Making a decision on an allegation that it has decided to investigate under
Stage 3 of this procedure.

A member or co-opted member of the authority (or of a parish council in the area)
may seek the Iindependent Pperson’s views on an allegation made against them.

Part 4(k)
Page 9 of 9
Consultation with Standards and Conduct Committee 5/2/21
Document Last amended on 22nd May 2019

Page 69

This page is intentionally left blank

